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OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

STATE OF NEW MEXI CO
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY, M NERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES
O L CONSERVATI ON DI VI SI ON

AVMENDED APPLI CATI ON OF PERM AN RESOURCES
OPERATI NG, LLC FOR COMPULSORY
POOLI NG, LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXI CGO, CASE NO. 25959

APPLI CATI ON OF AVANT OPERATING |1, LLC

FOR APPROVAL OF A NON- STANDARD SPACI NG UNI' T

AND COVPULSORY POOLI NG, LEA COUNTY,

NEW MEXI CO. CASE NO. 25956

APPLI CATI ON OF AVANT OPERATING 11, LLC

FOR APPROVAL OF A NON- STANDARD SPACI NG

UNI T AND COMPULSORY POOLI NG, LEA COUNTY,

NEW MEXI CO CASE NO. 25957

APRI L 28, 2022
8:58 A M
PECOS HALL
1220 SOUTH ST. FRANCI S DRI VE
SANTA FE, NEW MEXI CO 87505

BEFORE: HEARI NG EXAM NER GREGORY CHAKALI AN

REPORTED BY: KIM KAY SHOLLENBARGER, NM CCR#236
VERI TEXT MOUNTAI N REGQ ON
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXI CO
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OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Good norning. It is
April 28th. It is alnpst nine o'clock aam W!'re going to
start a few ninutes early. This is a special docket of the
O | Conservation Division. W have one hearing by affidavit
and one contested hearing. |1'mgoing to call the hearing by
affidavit first. This is Perm an Resources case nunber
25959. Entries of appearance, please.

MS. MCLEAN: Yes. Jaclyn MLean on behal f of
Per mi an Resources.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Good norni ng, Ms.
McLean. | see sonmeone from Conoco Phillips. Do you know if
they're going to show up today?

MS. MCLEAN: They entered an appearance. |'m not
sure -- they did not object to the proceeding, but I am not
sure if they were going to | og on or not.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Okay. Wiy don't you go
ri ght ahead.

MS. MCLEAN: Thank you. 1In this case we were asked
to subnit an amended application and anmended exhi bit packet
so that we could put lots instead of units in the |egal
description for these wells. W did so, we sent a new notice
letter with the amended application on April 8th. W also
ran a new affidavit of publication for April 10th. And
everything else remains the sane. And with that, we ask that

the exhibits be admtted into the record and the case be
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OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

t aken under advi senent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: They are adnitted
wi t hout exception. |Is it M. MClure or is it M. Fordyce,
who is the technical exam ner for this one hearing by
affidavit?

MS. MCLEAN: | thought it was M. MClure
originally.

MR. FORDYCE: Yes, it's M. MClure, M. Hearing
Exam ner.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Ms. Hatl ey, are you
entering an appearance?

MS. HATLEY: Good morning, M. Examiner. |'msorry,
| tried to be early, but not early enough. Keri Hatley
entering appearance on behalf of Marathon G|/ Perm an. W
are not objecting, just nmonitoring. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Thank you, Ms. Hatl ey.
Let me check M. MClure's notes, he may have put notes in
this case, so give ne a nminute

MR. FORDYCE: | believe that he did, M. Hearing
Exam ner. This is M. Fordyce.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Perfect. Let nme take a
| ook.

MR. FORDYCE: He had dropped nme a note yesterday
t hat that case can be taken under advisenent. 25959.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Perfect. Thank you,
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OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

M. Fordyce. And I'mjust going to check the hearing notes
here. Okay, yes, we're taking this case under advi senment.
Thank you, Ms. MLean

MS. MCLEAN: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: We're off the record in
that case. Let's nove on to Avant Operating. W have two
cases that are contested here, 25956 and 25957. Entry of
appear ances, please.

MS. LUCK: Good norning, M. Examiner. Kaitlyn Luck
appearing for Avant.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Good nor ni ng.

MS. PENA: Good norning, M. Hearing Exam ner
Yarithza Pena with Hardy McLean on behal f of Perm an
Resources Operating, and we are just nonitoring.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Thank you, Ms. Pena.

MS. HATLEY: Good norning, M. Exam ner. Keri
Hatl ey entering her appearance on behalf of Marathon
O I/ Perm an and nonitoring only.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Thank you, Ms. Hatl ey.

MS. KESSLER: Good norning, M. Exam ner. Jordan
Kessl er on behal f of EOG Resources, also nonitoring.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Thank you, Ms. Kessler.
Do we have the party that's objecting? | believe the nane is
Phillip Wiite, do we have M. White with us? | see someone

| ogged in as guest, who is nuted. And, Freya, you can't
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OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

unnmut e them manual | y?

MS. TSCHANTZ: | cannot. | can only mute them but

not unnute.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: | didn't know. Thank
you. M. VWhite, we're going to continue, I'mnot sure if
you're with us or not. | saw an email fromyou, M. Wite,

that was forwarded to me by the hearing clerk, let ne find

that, and I'll read it into the record. VWile I'm | ooking
for that email -- here it is. So thisis from it says,
"Phillip." The email address is blanco, C-O1 at nsn dot
com It was an email that was sent Saturday, April 25th, to

Ms. Tschantz at 8:34 p.m "H, Freya. Thank you for that.

| had asked the status hearing exam ner to allow nme a

si x-nonth conti nuance to allow a recovery from ny

life-threatening ordeal in January, but he scoffed at such a

request. He allowed the m ni mum one nonth and bei ng on

Tuesday. | have recovered to a certain degree.

esti mat e

my recovery at 60 percent, but in no sense of the word am!|

in any condition to travel to Santa Fe for an in-person

grilling at the OCD. Thanks for the heads up anyway.

Respectfully, Phillip Wite." M. Luck, have you been in

comuni cation with M. Wiite?

MS. LUCK: | did reach out to himl ast week and at

that point in tine we were discussing the fact that he was

attenpting to sell his interest on the 21st, and ny client
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OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

did make an offer to purchase that interest on the 21st and
then subsequently again on the 24th. So | was in contact
with himlast week and | understood that he would be here
this week, but then it sounds like he left Freya a note
differently yesterday. |'mnot exactly sure if it was his
intention to appear today or not, based on the email string.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  So woul d he be
negotiating with Avant's | andman?

MS. LUCK: Yes, and that's M. Saranti nos. She' s
here on the I|ine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And I'Il discuss this
with Ms. Sarantinos. She was here |ast week and | know who
she i s. Let's see, one other thing here. So | see the emnil
from M. Tschantz to M. White sent on April 24 at 3:45 p.m
"M. White, as a pro se party in next week's hearing,
wanted to |l et you know that in-person appearance is strongly
encouraged. The hearing location is listed in the
pre-hearing order that was sent to you on March 19th. Pl ease
let me know if you have any questions. Thank you." So it
was made clear to M. Wiite that he didn't need to show up,
it wasn't a requirement to show up in person, and that he
coul d have proceeded virtually. So far there is no notice

fromM. Wiite. So we're going to continue. M. Wite is

not here. Ms. Luck, let's tal k about your case. |It's still
opposed, in ny opinion. | do not have anything to show t hat
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M. Wiite has withdrawn his opposition, do you?

MS. LUCK: | have not received a withdrawal of his
obj ection, no, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  How do you wish to
proceed?

MS. LUCK: Well, at this point in time Avant would
like to present its case, both of them by affidavit. The
Wi tnesses are here to answer any questions the Hearing
Exam ner may have or if the Division would prefer we can cone
back on May 7th for an affidavit hearing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: |s there any objection
to proceeding by affidavit? Not hearing any. Let's see, how
many witnesses do you have.

MS. LUCK: | have two witnesses here today. There
is Tiffany Sarantinos, the |and person, and then Josh Payne,
t he geol ogi st.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Okay. Let's get both
witnesses -- well, first let's deal with the exhibits. So
what exhibits do you have for us?

MS. LUCK: Today for both cases | have submtted
exhi bit packets, and then as of this norning we had to submt
an anmended exhi bit packet for both cases to correct sone
i ssues with our exhibits.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: What issues?

MS. LUCK: M. Payne would be able to describe the
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geol ogy issues regardi ng where the Penn formati on was | ocat ed
and how he would like to clarify that on his exhibit packet.
And then with respect to the |and exhibits, | also included
an additional exhibit as required by the Division's rules
regarding comritted and uncommitted i nterest owners to be
clear that it was clearly delineated on that exhibit how the
parties were provided notice. And so, those were the two
maj or corrections that were made. There was a geol ogy
correction and then also the comm tted/ uncomm tted exhibit as
requi red by Division rules.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Let ne speak to M.
Fordyce. M. Fordyce, have you had an opportunity to | ook at
t he amended exhi bits?

MR. FORDYCE: | have just opened them about ten
m nutes ago and |'mtrying to see what has changed in them

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Ms. Luck, did you put
toget her the amended exhibit packet?

MS. LUCK: Yes, | did.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Can you explain to M.
Fordyce, instead of himhaving to search for what's been --
did you include a cover page to show what's been updated?

MS. LUCK: The table of contents was anmended to say
amended exhi bits and then had the notations on there.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Okay.

MS. LUCK: However, | did not submt a cover letter
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| can do so.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  So just walk M. Fordyce
t hrough what has been updated in the anended exhibit packet.

MS. LUCK: Thank you. M. Fordyce, on case 25956,
turn to page 30, you will see an additional page starting
there with the owner nane, owner type, status, commtnment
type, and then the dates of notice, as well as the notice
exhibit. And likew se in 25957 there is of course
corresponding exhibit that starts on page 32. And then
additionally, | think that our geol ogy w tness could speak
better to what his changes are on the geol ogy exhibit, but
it's ny understanding that his Exhibit D2 was anmended to
reflect where the Penn formation was | ocated on case 25957.
And that Exhibit D2 is |ocated at page 51.

MR. FORDYCE: Ms. Luck, was there a change to
Exhi bit D4 or any other exhibits in the geol ogy exhibits or
was it just D2?

MS. LUCK: | believe it was just D2, but | don't
want to be the final word on that. | believe that M. Payne
is here to explain those changes, if we could just have him
confirmthat there were no other changes to the other geol ogy
exhibits that were previously provided in the original
exhi bit package.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Ms. Luck, do you want to

ask your witness what was changed?

Page 9

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

MS. LUCK: Yes. Can | call himnow?

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Not as a wi tness, but
just to answer this question for M. Fordyce. He's not under
oath right now, so just ask him

MS. LUCK: M. Payne, could you explain for M.
Fordyce what the changes were to your exhibits.

MR. PAYNE: Yeah. On Exhibit D2 on both packets we
showed the Cisco top, which is last top that we have above
t he Strawn.

MS. LUCK: And were there any other changes?

MR. PAYNE: No, that was it on both exhibits.
Essentially, we just noved where we call the top of the Penn,
base of the Wolfcanp, up a little bit.

MS. LUCK: Thank you for that.

HEARI NG OFFlI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, does that
answer your questions?

MR. FORDYCE: Yes, it does.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  All right. Let's dea
now wi th your exhibits. You have an anended exhi bit packet,
does that contain all of the original exhibits with
corrections or does it not?

MS. LUCK: Yes, M. Hearing Exanminer, it's intended
to be a substitute or a replacenent exhibit package that has
all of the original exhibits and sinply has the additions and

the correcti ons noted.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Ms. Tschantz, will you
take out the original exhibit packet and just |eave in the
amended exhi bit packet.

MS. TSCHANTZ: Yes, | wll.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  So woul d you |ike that
admtted into evidence?

MS. LUCK: Yes, M. Hearing Exanminer. So at this
time I would nove to adnit Exhibits A through E for both
cases.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: As submitted in the
amended exhi bit packet.

MS. LUCK: Correct. Filed today with the Division.
April 28th.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And in the future you
will include a cover letter?

MS. LUCK: Yes, M. Hearing Exam ner.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Thank you. Adnitted
wi t hout exception. You said you have two witnesses. First
of all, what was the nature of the objection, since M. Wite
is not here?

MS. LUCK: Yes. It's ny understanding that the
nature of the objection is, M. Wite's interest is unleased
and so currently he has the option to either |ease his
interest to Avant or to any other party. And it was his

opi ni on that Avant had not made good faith efforts to reach a
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vol untary agreenment before attenpting to pool his interest.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  When did you start -- |
know you were not the original counsel in this case.

MS. LUCK: Yes, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Why did you take over
this case?

MS. LUCK: | think that Ms. Bennett's firmactually
had previously represented M. White. That was a conflict.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: When did you take over
this case?

MS. LUCK: | took over this case in early April and
| appeared at the status conference and requested a -- was it
early April? It mght have been March. But | requested a
contested hearing at that tinme, and then it was set for this
contested hearing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Why don't you check your
entry of appearance and tell ne what date it was fil ed.

MS. LUCK: Okay. ©Oh, it was actually March 18t h.
So it was March when | entered an appearance.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And when did you first
start communicating with M. Wite?

MS. LUCK: So the communications occurred through
Avant and Avant sent their original well proposals back in
Decenmber of ' 25.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: To M. Wite?

Page 12

Veritext Lega Solutions

Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

MS. LUCK: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  You know that for a
fact.

MS. LUCK: Yes. And that's based on Avant's
exhibits. Qur land representative is here today to testify
to her communications with M. Wite starting in December of
2025.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And renenber, the court
reporter needs you to slow down and speak clearly.

MS. LUCK: Okay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Can | have Ms.
Sarantinos, and is it M. Payne, you said?

MS. LUCK: Yes, M. Josh Payne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Are you both in the sane
roonf

MS. SARANTI NOS:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  You are, okay. Perfect.
Woul d you both raise your right hands, please.

(Wtnesses Sworn)

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: | heard two yeses. Ms.
Sarantinos, let's start with you. Wuld you state and spell
your nane for the record.

MS. SARANTI NOS: Sure. Tiffany Sarantinos.
T-i-f-f-a-n-y. S-a-r-a-n-t-i-n-o-s.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And you' ve been
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previously admitted as an expert before this Division?

MS. SARANTI NCS: Yes, sSir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: In what field?

MS. SARANTI NOS: Petroleum | and matters.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Payne, state and
spell your nane for the record.

MR. PAYNE: J-o0-s-h-u-a. P-a-y-n-e.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And you' ve previously
been adnmtted as an expert before this Division?

MR. PAYNE: Yes, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: I n what field?

MR. PAYNE: Petrol eum geol ogy.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Thank you very nmuch.
Ms. Luck, your amended exhibit packet has been admitted into
evi dence without exception. Your two wi tnesses have been
sworn in. Wy don't you begin your case.

MS. LUCK: | would like to call Ms. Sarantinos as ny
first wtness.

EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. LUCK
Q Ms. Sarantinos, thanks for being here today. |If you
could start off by letting the Division know your role in
t hese cases and a summary of your |and testinony.
A. Sure. Avant has applied to pool for a Wl fcanp

960-acre spacing unit, which includes all of Section 21 and
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the north half of 28 and that is for the Penn and the
Wl f canp formations. Li ke Ms. Luck stated earlier, we sent
out proposals in early Decenmber to all of the working

i nterest owners and a handful of unleased m neral interest
owners, nostly that had spewed out of previous | eases before.

Q And just for clarification, the 25957 application is
for the Penn formation; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q I know you subnitted these exhibits for the Division
to consider, but is it your opinion that Avant nmade good
faith efforts to reach a voluntary agreenent with M. Wite
prior to pooling?

A. Yes, that's correct. When he first initially
received his packet in early Decenber, we exchanged a handf ul
of phone calls, and he expressed his interest in -- with us
| easing. And he had like certain | ease provisions that he
want ed to use and we continued to negotiate through those for
mont hs and were agreeable to all of them W actually canme
to a formal agreenent and that was when Ms. Bennett was
representing our case. She kind of was passing enmails
bet ween nyself and M. Wite, because again he had had
previous relationship with Ms. Bennett, so | think he felt
confortable, and we didn't m nd. And he had agreed to | ease
wi th us, and then unbeknownst to us he let us know that he

was actually going to be listing his interest in an auction
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in April. It was at that point that we first |earned that we
did not have a deal anynore.

Q But then subsequent to that did Avant continue to
make efforts to purchase his interest at the auction?

A Yes, that's correct. W were actually awarded the
hi ghest bi dder on the auction on the 21st and | ater received
note there had been a reserve, mninum anmount had not been
met by the seller, so he declined all offers. And then the
third party cl earinghouse reached out to us and gave us the
opportunity, | guess to submt another bid, which we did so
and the clearinghouse notified us that it was declined.

Q And so that was all the way up through |ast Friday,
April 24th; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Is there anything else that you would |ike to add
for the Division to consider?

A No, | think that's it.

Q And were each of your exhibits prepared by you or
under your direction and supervision?

A That's correct.

MS. LUCK: So that concludes the questions | have
for Ms. Sarantinos. | turn her over to the Hearing Exani ner
Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Let ne follow up on that

| ast question you asked. Ms. Sarantinos, are there any
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corrections you need to make to the exhibits that were
adm tted just this norning?

MS. SARANTI NOS: Just the ones that Kaitlyn had
mentioned. Do you want nme to go through those with you?

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Yes. Go ahead.

MS. SARANTINOS: So actually in our application, |
think originally had been prepared by Deana Bennett, in
paragraph 2 of the 25957 case, which is the Penn case, the
ver bi age she used was actually Wl fcamp unit, but then used
the correction Penn code and name. So we correct -- | think
we're attenpting to correct that in this update. And then
there were corrections made to the tract map and | egend.
They just weren't matching up. | think it was a copy/paste
error on ny behalf. And then we just added the two
additional offers that we sent to M. Wiite on the summary of
contacts.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  You said you corrected
sonet hing Ms. Bennett did in her description of the formation
or pool code or sonmething like that. Can you be nore
specific what you're tal king about? Wat was it originally
and what did you correct it to?

MS. SARANTINOS: And | could be speaki ng w ong,
Kaitlyn, so correct me if I'"mwong. But in paragraph 2 of
t he 25957 portion of the application, where you kind of

describe in text what you're attenpting to pool, | think she
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accidentally listed it as a Wolfcanmp unit, and then listed
t he Penn, and then the correct Penn code. But | do believe
it said Wl fcanp.

MR. FORDYCE: Ms. Sarantinos, this is M. Fordyce,
the Technical Examiner. |'m]looking at that, and just for
clarification since we're talking about it, if you're
referring to the application in paragraph 2, it still says
Wbl f canp horizontal spacing unit in the Lea Penn gas pool

MS. SARANTI NOS: Maybe Ms. Luck decided that we were
not going to correct that.

M5. LUCK: If I may, | can't change the application
that was already on file with the Division. It is filed as
our Exhibit B with the exhibit package for 25957. So as Ms.
Sarantinos is noting, the application has an internal
i nconsi stency that rather than saying the Penn formation, it
says the Wbl fcanp formati on; however, it correctly lists the
Penn pool. So all the rest of our exhibits, meaning Ms.
Sarantinos affidavit, Exhibit C and our Exhibit A, the
application checklist, all correctly list the Penn fornmation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And is that on the
anmended exhibit? 1Is that one of the reasons why you anended
your exhibits?

MS. LUCK: No, that was all in the original exhibit
package that was filed with the application with the internal

i nconsi stencies, as well as the correct checklist and the
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correct affidavit.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Ckay.

MS. LUCK: We were aware of this issue coming into
hearing, we wanted to bring it to the Division's attention at
the hearing to deternmine if the application could be approved
as is, given the fact that there was the internal
i nconsi stency, but the correct pool code.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Okay. M. Fordyce, why
don't you exam ne this wtness.

EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. FORDYCE:

Q Good norning, Ms. Sarantinos. |'mlooking at the
exhibits for case 25956, and it would be on page 12, which is
your self-affirmed statenment. | think there's also a
correction maybe needed in paragraph 11 that states, for case
25956, you see that it nentions a wildcat-015 and sonme ot her
numbers, but a Bone Spring pool, and that case does involve a
Wbl f canp pool. And then paragraph 12 for case 25957, it
| ooks like there's another correction needed, as that case
is, again, involving a Pennsylvania pool, Lea Penn gas pool,
but it mentions the Purple Sage Wbl fcanp pool.

A. | would imagine, yes. W probably do need to
correct those. | think applied for these originally in
Decenber, before we were given these updated codes and pool

codes to use in January. So, yes, it would make sense that
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t hose need to be corrected.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  |I' m conf used,

Ms. Sarantinos. It sounds |like the pool code, from what M.
Fordyce said, was correct, and it's the formation, the way
it's described, is not correct. [Is that not your
understanding? |'mtrying to get us all on the sane page.

MS. SARANTINOS: No, | think that our affidavit
incorrectly lists these pool codes, but everything else lists
the correct pool codes. So we just need to correct the
affidavit.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Is that right, M.

For dyce?

MR. FORDYCE: Well, no. Again, in paragraph 11 for
case 25956, it's describing a Bone Spring pool when actually
that case is for the Wil fcanp. And in paragraph 11 for case
25957, it discuss Purple Sage Wl fcanp, but that's actually
the Lea Penn gas pool. So they're just inaccurate. And
bel i eve that m ght have had something to do with -- there
ni ght have been sone confusion potentially, because there
were potentially sone Bone Spring cases as well. So sone of
these formati ons or case numbers m ght have got m xed up, |'m
not sure. But again, for 25956 it has nothing to do with the
Bone Spring. And 25957 has nothing to do with Purple Sage
Wbl f canp.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Ms. Sarantinos, do you
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under stand what M. Fordyce sayi ng?

MS. SARANTINOS: | do. Again, | really do think it
was the timng of which we applied, and potentially the
overlap in counsel. But to ne, this is an easy fix. W

woul d just be updating the correct pool code t

our exhibits in the application.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, it sounds
like we're still talking about just pool codes; is that
right? O is that not what you're trying to get across?

MR. FORDYCE: The pool names and codes are |isted

incorrectly in paragraphs 11 and 12.

MS. SARANTI NOS:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Ms. Sarantinos, |

haven't heard you acknow edge that it's not just the pool

codes, but it's the pool nanmes as well.

MS. SARANTI NOCS: That is correct. It

paragraphs 11 and 12 the pool code nane and codes were

incorrectly used; however, the correct pool code and pool

names have been used correctly throughout al

exhi bits.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Ms. Sarantinos, you're

an attorney, right?

MS. SARANTI NOS: No, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: OCh, you're not? |

t hought you were.

o match all of

| ooks like in

of our
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MS. SARANTI NOS: | am not.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: | thought | renenmber you
saying that here. So, Ms. Luck, does this require new
notice?

MS. LUCK: No, M. Hearing Examiner. | believe that
this requires an anmended Exhibit C from Ms. Sarantinos to
correctly reflect the correct pool codes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And make the | egal
argument why it doesn't require new notice.

MS. LUCK: So this is just an issue in her pretrial
testinony. As she stated previously, the applications that
are attached as Exhibit B in both packets are correct, they
correctly list the correct full name and pool code. This is
an issue with the affidavit. Her self-affirmed statenment has
two paragraphs with incorrect statenents and so we would just
sinply need to renmove those. |If you | ook at paragraphs 7 and
9 of her self-affirned statement, which is what M. Fordyce
is referring to, it does reflect the correct pool names and
pool codes. W just incorrectly cited the Bone Spring and
t he Purple Sage in paragraphs 11 and 12. So if you | ook at 7
and 9, the correct pool codes are listed and so we would just
need to amend her self-affirned statenent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And are we tal king about
both cases or just one case?

MS. LUCK: Bot h cases.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Bot h.

MS. LUCK: Because it's the same statement for both
cases.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And you were saying that
the applications correctly stated the proper pool codes and
pool code nanes, that is what you said?

MS. LUCK: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And, M. Fordyce, do you
agree with that?

MR. FORDYCE: Yeah, | think in this case paragraphs
11 and 12 are just errors that need to be corrected.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Good. So what you're
saying then is, that the applications thenselves don't need
to be re-noticed.

MR. FORDYCE: | believe that's correct. Looking
again, application for 25956 is Wl fcanmp and that code -- the
only question then would be, what M. Luck has al ready
di scussed for 25957, the Wolfcanp spacing unit with the Lea
Penn pool code. | would ask, and perhaps M. Payne would
chime in, if they were going to describe that correctly, how
woul d they describe it if it's not Wl fcanp, a Wl fcam
hori zontal spacing unit in the Lea Penn gas pool, how woul d
it have been described correctly?

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Payne.

MR. PAYNE: Yes, sir. | woul d descri be the Penn as
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essentially top Cisco down to the Strawn and then the
Wbl f canp woul d essentially be the top of the Wl fcanmp down to
top of the Cisco, which are shown in our exhibit packets.

MR. FORDYCE: So in case 25957, you would have said
that this is a Penn pool or an Upper Penn pool ?

MR. PAYNE: Yes, sir, Cisco --

MR. FORDYCE: O, excuse ne, not pool, but spacing
unit -- I'msorry, not pool, but it should have said perhaps
Cisco or Canyon or Upper Penn horizontal spacing unit in the
Lea Penn gas pool, pool code 80040.

MR. PAYNE: Yes, sSir.

MR. FORDYCE: Thank you for that.

MR. PAYNE: Yes, sir.

MR. FORDYCE: | have some nore questions for Ms.
Sarantinos, actually. Sorry for skipping around.

MS. SARANTI NOS:  Okay.

MR. FORDYCE: So | have a question on -- well, first
let's ook at the C102 on page 15 for the 751H. The first
thing that | need to point out is that there is an error in
this pool code and that error is that -- the part that says
G 09 is actually G 08.

MS. SARANTI NOS: Ckay.

MR. FORDYCE: And nmy next question for Cl102 is that,
if you ook at the first take point, first and | ast take

point actually, it says that it's 1,254 feet fromthe west
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i ne, whi

wel |, wel

ch does not agree with the CP-ACT that says this
| nunmber 1, is 330 feet fromthe west line. And it
al so does not seemto match up with M. Payne's -- |let ne see

whi ch exhibit that was. Exhi bit D2 on Page 44,

wel | s appear

t hese five

to be spaced out equivalently rather than the

751H and 752H, kind of being on top of each other. [|I'm

t hinking that there's an error in the C102 for

know, again, fromthe neasurenent fromthe west

where -- you

| i ne where

this well is |ocated.

MS. SARANTINOS: You're thinking is the error is in
t he CP-ACT?

MR. FORDYCE: Well, the CP-ACT says 330 feet from
the west line, so if you look at -- so if we | ook at page 16

for this well, again the Cl02 is showi ng that i

t's 1, 254 feet

fromthe west line. Then if you scroll down to the 752 on

page 17 it says 1,485 feet fromthe west |ine.

So these two

wells are very, very close to each other in the Cl02s. And

agai n, the CP-ACT says 330 feet fromthe west |

you | ook

i ne. And i f

at page 44 for -- no, that's not correct. | have

t he wong page nunber. Let me get the page. Page 49, for

exanpl e,

M. Payne's Exhibit D2, it does not show the 751 and

the 752 stacked on top of each other

MS. SARANTINOS: | do see what you're

saying. It

does | ook like there needs to be an update to the CL02. It

| ooks like everything else is correct on this,

t hough. And
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this is a gas pool, so it has a 300 -- this is 330 fromthe
west line, is what that 751 shoul d be.

MR. FORDYCE: In 25956, that is an oil pool. Did
you say it was a gas pool?

MS. SARANTINOS: OIl. No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: | heard gas,

Ms. Sarantinos. Are you sure?

MS. SARANTI NOS:  Yes, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, she
definitely said gas.

MR. FORDYCE: 25956 is an oil pool in the Wl fcanp.
25957 is a gas pool in the Upper Penn. But, yes, so for
25956 it is an oil pool. | believe Ms. Sarantinos m sspoke.

MS. SARANTI NOS: Yes, that's correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, it sounds
to ne |ike you have some nore questions for the w tnesses
bef ore we give any kind of guidance on how to proceed; is
that right?

MR. FORDYCE: Let ne |look at my notes. For 25957
there were again the errors in Ms. Sarantinos statenent, in
paragraphs 11 and 12. There were sonme questions about
Exhibit C2, which it [ooks like in this amended exhibit,

t hose have been corrected regarding the description for the
tracts of land. | also have sonme questions about notice and

the notice list, and then a whole long |list of corrections
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for the CP-ACT for both cases.
HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: So, M. Fordyce, are you
saying then that you have concl uded your questions for the

W t nesses?

MR. FORDYCE: No. | have sone questions about
notice, actually. If we could look at -- it would be
page. . .

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Can you bring this up,
Ms. Luck.

MR. FORDYCE: It would be page 74.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: On the anmended packet?

MR. FORDYCE: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  From here on end we're
only going to tal k about the anended packets, so you don't
have to say that. The other one has been renoved. The
original one is removed fromthe record. And which exhibit
nunber is this, M. Luck?

MS. LUCK: |I'mlooking for the page nunber that...

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: On the right side, there
you go. You were there. Right by where it says, Y-P, |ook
to the left, there's a little box with a 7 in there.

MS. LUCK: | think this is the page nunmber that --
sorry, |I'm showi ng the wong screen. Let nme show the right
screen.

MR. FORDYCE: So this is the transaction report for
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the notifications that were sent out.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, hold on one
second. Ms. Luck, what exhibit are we | ooking at?

MS5. LUCK: Is this Exhibit E

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: E. No subnunber or
anything like that, just E?

MS. LUCK: E, yes. |It's attached to ny
self-affirmed statement of notice. These are the notice
docunments that Ms. Bennett's office prepared.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  So you didn't |abel this
like E1 or E2, this is just all part of E.

MS. LUCK: Yes. And | can give them sub-|abels, if
you |ike.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: No, | don't. | just
want to be able to refer to themcorrectly for the record so
we know what we're tal king about. So fromnow if it's going
to E and then a page nunber, please say what the page nunber
is. So we're |looking at page 74 of 75. Go right ahead, M.
Fordyce.

MR. FORDYCE: So | conpared this list to the |ist
that Ms. Sarantinos provided for unleased mneral interest
overrides and parties that were due notice of the
non-standard proration unit. | was unable to find four
unl eased m neral interests; nanmely, Caprock M nerals, Desert

Waterfall, LLC, Harry and Nancy El ki n, Norma Chanl ey, aka
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Norma Barton, those are the unleased mneral interests and an
overriding royalty interest John Lawence Chilton, but also
in addition to those five parties that | could not find on
this list that needed to be noticed, | found eight parties

t hat appear on this list and | do not know why they are on
this list. So |I'mwondering whether the right parties were
noticed, if we're |looking at the right transaction report for
t hese cases or what the discrepancy is, because it would
appear to nme that all the proper parties have not been

noti ced.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: |Is this a question, M.
Fordyce, for Ms. Sarantinos or for the attorney?

MR. FORDYCE: Well, | guess whichever one can
answer. Ms. Sarantinos provided this list and I'mnot -- |
believe that maybe Ms. Bennett's firm had done the notice,
but I'mnot sure. |Is that correct, Ms. Luck?

MS. LUCK: Yes, that's correct. This notice was
provided by Ms. Sarantinos to Ms. Bennett to send out the
noti ces, so maybe she can clarify if Caprock Desert, the
Elkin famly and the other two parties were provided notice.

MR. FORDYCE: Sorry to interrupt, M. Sarantinos,
but just to clarify, it looks like all the parties that were
due notice, those parties are not all included on this |ist,
there's five that are missing. Unless for sone reason we're

potentially |looking at the wong transaction report and it's
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not for this case, but right nowit |ooks like all the
parties that were due notice are not |listed here.

MS. SARANTINOS: In regards to the additiona
parties that were listed, | think sonetines we will over
noti ce as opposed to under notice. And honestly,
unfortunately we can't really speak to Ms. Bennett's printout
t hat she has provided, but | do recall that one of the nanes
you had listed, we are negotiating | eases with several of the
parties, so the Elkins, and they are not listed as a party to
pool, because we've been negotiating |leases with them for
quite awhile and we're very confortable that we will -- we're
exchanging redlines right now So those parties will not be
force pool ed.

MR. FORDYCE: | believe that you had indicated in
your exhibits Caprock Mnerals was a party being pool ed.
Desert Waterfall, LLC was a party being pooled. Norma
Chanl ey al so known as Norma Barton was a party being pool ed
as unl eased mineral interest.

MS. SARANTI NOS: Yes, those | ook like that.

MS. LUCK: And so | think there's additional notices
that need to be provided, then that would be our
responsibility at this point intime. And | will confirm
with Ms. Bennett's office that those parties were not
provi ded notice and inadvertently left off this list, and

then I would ask for continuance to be able to provide notice
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for these parties.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, why don't
we continue your questions and when you're done, then we can
tal k about how we're going to cure this or how we're going to
proceed.

MR. FORDYCE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | believe,
| ooki ng at ny notes, the last thing probably to discuss would
be multiple corrections to the CP-ACT.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: So it sounds to ne |ike,
M. Fordyce, you don't have any nore questions for the two
Wi tnesses; is that correct?

MR. FORDYCE: | believe that concludes ny questions
for Ms. Sarantinos and M. Payne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Before we go to any
gui dance, let's find out from M. Luck if there's any
redirect.

MS. LUCK: | don't have any additional questions,

t hank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce, where do
you want to begin in your guidance?

MR. FORDYCE: If we want to start |ooking at the
conpul sory pooling application checklist for case 25956 on
page 3, there are sonme nmultiple itenms here that we need to
address. Are you with nme, M. Luck?

MS. LUCK: Yes, M. Fordyce.

Page 31

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

MR. FORDYCE: For the entries of appearance of
intervenors, | see Party 1 EOC, Party 2 Perm an and Party 4

Mar at hon. Should there be a Party 3? Wuld that be Phillip

White?

MS. LUCK: Yes, | believe he should also be listed
on here, so | will include him | apologize.

MR. FORDYCE: Scrolling down to the formation nanes,
formati on pool section, | guess. Formation name Wl f canp,

and below that it says primary product is gas. Wen, in
fact, this pool is an oil pool. So that would al so nean that
the well location setback rules where it says, "statew de gas
rules,"” and the building blocks saying 160 acres, are

i ncorrect.

MS. LUCK: Okay. And |ikew se, the pool code here
on line 15 should say the G08, right? Not G09.

MR. FORDYCE: That is correct, Ms. Luck. @08 is the
correct entry there. Another thing, in orientation it says
east/west. These wells would be drilled north/south. And
then the anmended exhibits, going back to the pool code, the
C102s then, of course are going to be anended, should all say
(08 as well. Turning to case 25957 for that, |ook at that
CP- ACT with you whenever you're ready, M. Luck.

MS. LUCK: Yes, sir, |I'mready.

MR. FORDYCE: So I'min the formation and pool

section again. Well, let me back up. |If you want to add M.
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Phillip White to your entries of appearance on this one as
well. And then I'm Il ooking at the formation pool section,
for sone reason we have a Bone Spring pool name and code
when, in fact, it is the Lea Penn gas pool 80040. That is a
gas pool, so well location setback rules should not say,
"statewide oil well rules." And the building bl ocks would
not be 40 acres, they would be one sixties. And again, the
orientation is not east/west, it's north/south. In addition
to that for this case, if we go to the next page, pages 4 and
5 actually where the well descriptions are contained for each
of these wells in the conpletion target section, the TVDs and
TMDs are off substantially by approximately five to 6,000
feet. So |I'mnot sure where these nunbers cone from but
they need to be corrected.

MS. LUCK: [I'Ill nmake those corrections.

MR. FORDYCE: | believe, M. Hearing Exam ner, that
is all the corrections to the CP-ACTs.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Are you done with your
gui dance so we can figure out how we're going to nove on?

MR. FORDYCE: | believe so, yes, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: All right. Thank you,
M. Fordyce. Ms. Luck, it sounds like there's sone parties
that still need noti ce.

MS. LUCK: That's correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  So how do you plan to
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proceed?

MS. LUCK: Well, at this point intime | would
request a continuance so that Avant could properly provide
notice and al so submt corrected exhibits for the Division to
consider and to take under review. At that point in tinme |
woul d just request this be set for another affidavit hearing
for review, if possible. The May 7th hearing | think is too
soon to allow the notice period to go. |'mnot sure what
ot her dockets are avail abl e.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: I think June 4 or 5.
Freya, which is the June docket?

MS. TSCHANTZ: 4.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: 4, thank you. Ms. Luck
you woul d continue your case to the June 4 docket?

MS. LUCK: Yes, please.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  And when you submit the
second anmended hearing packet, include a cover letter that
outlines everything M. Fordyce just had you do.

MS. LUCK: Yes, | will do that, M. Hearing
Exam ner

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: I ncl udi ng how you cured
notice for these parties.

MS. LUCK: Yes, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: Is there anything

further, M. Luck?
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MS. LUCK: Nothing further. Thank you for your

anyt hi ng

tinme.

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN: M. Fordyce,
further?

MR. FORDYCE: Looking at my notes, | don't see
anything el se, M. Hearing Examner. | believe |

HEARI NG OFFI CER CHAKALI AN:  Thank you,

"m done.

Ms. Sarantinos. Thank you, M. Payne. M. VWite, we never

heard from you today. Are you there? No, okay.
the record.

(Record concluded at 9:51 a.m)

We are off

Page 35

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691

WWWw.veritext.com



o 00~ wWDN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

OCD Hearing Day 1 - April 28, 2026

REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE

I, KimKay Sholl enbarger, Certified Court Reporter,
do hereby certify that | reported the foregoing proceedi ngs
i n stenographi c shorthand and that the foregoing pages are a
transcri pt of those proceedings that were reduced to printed
form by ne.

| FURTHER CERTI FY that | am neither enployed by nor
related to any of the parties or attorneys in this case and
that | have no interest in the final disposition of this

case.

ki Koy W{&%@éa/@&r

Ki m Kay Shol | enbarger, NMCCR 236
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New Mexico Rules of Civil Procedure for the
District Courts

Article 5, Rule 1-030

(e) Review by Witness; Changes; Signing.

If requested by the deponent or a party before
completion of the deposition, the deponent shall
have thirty (30) days after being notified by the
officer that the transcript or recording is
available in which to review the transcript or
recording and, 1if there are changes in form or
substance, to sign a statement reciting such
changes and the reasons given by the deponent for
making them. The officer shall indicate in the
certificate prescribed by Subparagraph (1) of
Paragraph F of this rule whether any review was
requested and, if so, shall append any changes made

by the deponent during the period allowed.

DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING CIVIL PROCEDURE RULES
ARE PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

THE ABOVE RULES ARE CURRENT AS OF APRIL 1,

2019. PLEASE REFER TO THE APPLICABLE STATE RULES

OF CIVIL PROCEDURE FOR UP-TO-DATE INFORMATION.




VERITEXT LEGAL SOLUTIONS

COMPANY CERTIFICATE AND DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
Veritext Legal Solutions represents that the
foregoing transcript is a true, correct and complete
transcript of the colloquies, questions and answers
as submitted by the court reporter. Veritext Legal
Solutions further represents that the attached
exhibits, if any, are true, correct and complete
documents as submitted by the court reporter and/or
attorneys in relation to this deposition and that
the documents were processed in accordance with

our litigation support and production standards.

Veritext Legal Solutions is committed to maintaining
the confidentiality of client and witness information,
in accordance with the regulations promulgated under
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA), as amended with respect to protected
health information and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as
amended, with respect to Personally Identifiable
Information (PII). Physical transcripts and exhibits
are managed under strict facility and personnel access

controls. Electronic files of documents are stored




in encrypted form and are transmitted in an encrypted
fashion to authenticated parties who are permitted to
access the material. Our data is hosted in a Tier 4

SSAE 16 certified facility.

Veritext Legal Solutions complies with all federal and
State regulations with respect to the provision of
court reporting services, and maintains its neutrality
and independence regardless of relationship or the
financial outcome of any litigation. Veritext requires
adherence to the foregoing professional and ethical
standards from all of its subcontractors in their

independent contractor agreements.

Inquiries about Veritext Legal Solutions'
confidentiality and security policies and practices
should be directed to Veritext's Client Services
Assoclates indicated on the cover of this document or

at www.veritext.com.
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